SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 17, 2011
9:35 a.m

9:35:18 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:35 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

M chell e Rizk, Associate Vice President, Budget, University
of Al aska; Kit Duke, Associate Vice President, Facilities,
Uni versity of Alaska; Linda Perez, Admi nistrative Director,
Division of Adm ni strative  Services, Ofice of t he
Governor; Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of Minagenent and
Budget, O fice of the Governor

SUWARY

SB 46 BUDGET: CAPI TAL
SB 46 was HEARD and Held in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb46

SENATE BI LL NO. 46

"An Act making and anendi ng appropriations, including
capi tal appropriations and other appropri ations;



making appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."

9:36: 19 AM

Co- Chai r Stedman asked the testifiers to introduce
t hemsel ves, and requested explanation as to why the
University President was not present at the neeting. He
added that after the discussion of the three proposals,
there would be a presentation related to the topic.

M CHELLE RI ZK, ASSOCI ATE VI CE PRESI DENT, BUDGET, UN VERSI TY
OF ALASKA, introduced herself.

KIT DUKE, ASSOCI ATE VI CE PRESI DENT, FAC LITIES, UN VERSITY
OF ALASKA, introduced herself.

Ms. Rizk stated that the president intended to attend the
nmeeting, but he had a death in the famly. Co-Chair Stednan
understood the reason for the president's absence,
appreci ated the explanation, and expressed his condol ences
to the president's famly.

9:37:22 AM

Co- Chair Stednman requested the presentation begin with item
nunber 51679.

UNI VERSI TY

Ms. Rizk stated that she would explain the three University
projects that were included in the Governor's proposed
budget. She furthered that M. Duke would discuss the
University of Alaska (UA) Sustainnment Funding Plan for UA
Facilities (copy on file).

RN 51679
Annual Renewal and Repurposi ng
$2, 000, 000.

Ms. Rizk explained that UA owned and nmaintained over 400
buil dings, totaling 6.7 mllion gross square feet, wth an
adjusted value that «currently exceeded $2 billion. An
addi tional amount of $2 mllion for Annual Renewal and
Repurposing was the first year of an effort to get to a
property mai nt enance sust ai nnent fundi ng strat egy,
investing $50 million annually to extend the life of ol der

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/17/11 9:35 A M



buil dings that would need major system replacenents. Wth
the ability to make capital investnments annually, it would
prevent a deferred nmai nt enance backl og.

9:39: 01 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noticed that the itens were in order of
canpus, wondered how the projects would be prioritized
according to need. Ms. Rizk replied that the distribution
of funds would be based on the size and need of each
canpus.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered why the docunment showed a gap
from $2 mllion to $50 mllion. Ms. Rizk replied that M.
Duke would answer that question in detail later in her
presentation. She summarized that that there was a request
for $25 mllion for the first phase of a two year phase to
reach $50 million. The annual investnent is $50 mllion, in
order to keep facilities off of the deferred nmaintenance
backl og.

9:40: 56 AM

RN 43218
Federal Receipt Authority for Capital Projects
$30, 000, 000.

Ms. Rizk stated that the request was an estimation of
potential federal receipt authority needed to for FY 12
through FY 17 projects at the main and comunity canpuses.
The University was continuing to pursue federal funding
sources and needed the ability to accept funding. Prior
federal receipt authority was nearly exhausted due to Title
11 funding, thus addition federal receipt authority was
necessary. Prior federal receipt authority received in FY
11 was used for projects such as the University of Al aska
Sout heast (UAS) Sitka Renovation of Career and Technical
Educati on Renovation, and the University of Fairbanks (UAF)
Interior-Aleutians Canmpus (1 AC) Tok Harper Renovati on.

9:41: 34 AM

RN 45326
Def erred Mai ntenance and Renewal and Repur posing
$37, 500, 000.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/17/11 9:35 A M



Ms. Rizk stated that the University owned and nmaintained
over 400 buildings, totaling 6.7 mllion gross square feet,
with an adjusted value that currently exceeded $2 billion.
The Deferred Maintenance and Renewal request provided
funding to reduce the backlog of nmaintenance for those
facilities. The current deferred maintenance backlog was
upwards of $800 nmillion and funding was needed to reduce
the backlog to a level that would |lessen the anount of
resource invested in enmergency response, thus taking away
from preventative maintenance work that could be easily
acconpl i shed annually. An investnment of $37.5 nmillion each
year for the next four years would enable the University to
begin reduction the deferred naintenance and renewa
backl og.

Co-Chair Stedman stated that the explanation of the
Governor's University requests in the Capital Budget was
now conplete. There would be a presentation of the
Uni versity nmai nt enance concerns.

9:42: 51 AM

Ms. Duke discussed the chart: "Sustainnment Funding Plan for
UA Facilities" (copy on file). She stated that the lift
side of the chart portrayed historic deferred maintenance.
She furthered that t hat the information in green
represented Deferred Maintenance Reduction. She explained
that the bars represented the capital investnent that the
state had already nade in Deferred Mintenance since 2006
She stressed that even though there was capital investnent,
the deferred maintenance backlog went from $615 mllion to
$750 million. She stressed that there was still no breaking
of the cycle of adding to the backlog, even w th noney that
was invested over tinme. She stressed that President Ganble
di scussed a desire to stop the cycle of adding to the
backl og. She stated that previously, the Board of Regents
decided that the University would try to invest adequately
in preventative and schedul ed naintenance, and there would
be investnent in re-capitalization. She explained that re-
capitalization was the nobney that was invested to extend

the life of the building: roof, heating, and electrical
system replacenent. She furthered that the structure of a
building will last nuch longer than the interior systens.

The dark blue bars represented the M and R Annua
Expendi tures (Operating Budget). She stated that the |ight
bl ue bar represented the R and R Annual capi tal
expenditures. She explained that the red bars represented

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/17/11 9:35 A M



t he annual investnment target shortfall. She stated that the

University's attenpt to stop the shortfall, there needed to
be a $200 million investnent to fulfill the backl og needs.
She stated that they were trying to establish a financial
situation that would be satisfactory to live wth. She

stressed that there would be sone energency naintenance
needs. The dark blue line represented the fundi ng needed to
mai ntai n the buil dings annual ly.

9:48: 00 AM

Senator MG@iire wondered if there was any application for
the energy efficiency |oans under SB 220. M. Duke stated
that there was an application for the Energy Audit Funds,
which was the first step in the application for energy
efficiency loans. She stated that the application was
turned in approximately two weeks prior. Senator MQiire
stressed that there was about $280 million in those funds.

Co- Chair Stedman commented that there would be refurbishing
issues. He stated that there still could be financial
challenges wth bond investnents. He cautioned the
university in their investnent and nmi ntenance strategies.
Ms. Duke stressed that they wanted to reassure the
commttee of their financial strategy.

Co-Chair Stedman pointed out that if the |egislature does
not provide the noney for the University, the University
woul d i nvest in bonds.

9:51: 32 AM
AT EASE

9:51: 38 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stednman wel coned testifiers from the Governor's
of fice.

L1 NDA PEREZ, ADM NI STRATI VE DI RECTOR, DVISION OF
ADM NI STRATI VE SERVICES, OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, stated
that there was an item in the proposed budget for $100, 000
for the Division of Elections. This item would represent an
additional Help Anerica Vote Act (HAVA) Gant for voting
accessibility state-wde. She stated that there was a
corresponding transaction to the HAVA Gant request in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/17/11 9:35 A M



section 5-B of the bill: receipt of the federal noney in
the election fund to fund the HAVA G ant request.

Co-Chair Stednman declared that the commttee mght be able
to provide funds for that request.

9:53:42 AM

Senat or Egan wondered where the proposed voting places were
going to be. Ms. Perez agreed to provide that information.

9:54: 34 AM

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, discussed section 4 of SB 46 (copy
on file): Federal and Oher Program Receipts. She stated
that the three sub-sections had to do with the receipt of
Federal or other funds that could be considered by
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit. She explained that there was
sone specific |anguage that would allow state authorization
to be reduced under sub-section B, if other funds were
received. She furthered that sub-section C would limt the
expenditures to the funds that are actually received.

Ms. Rehfeld explained section 5: Fund Capitalization. Sub-
section A referred to the AG A reinbursenment fund, with a
request of $160 mllion. She stated that there was
appropriation of $185 mllion through FY 11. She stated
that with the addition of $160 mllion, there would be
approxi matel y $345 mllion avai |l abl e for Ad A
rei nbursenents

Co-Chair Stednman stated that there was sone discussion in
the subcommttee process about AG@ A and desired to have
further discussion.

9:57: 06 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman queried the thought behind the revenue
sources. Ms. Rehfeld replied that the Governor had proposed
to use the Al aska Housing Capital Corporation Funds. She
expl ai ned the about $300 million had been set aside for the
Al aska Housing Capital Corporation Fund, and there had been
sonme di scussi on about whether or not the noney had been set
aside for gas |line expenditures. She declared that the fund
was considered Unrestricted General Funds.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/17/11 9:35 A M



9:58: 03 AM

Co- Chair Stedman encouraged consideration for funding of
the Al aska Housing Corporation Fund Source. He stated that
the Fund was initially set aside in the event that there
was substantial revenue short falls in the state. He
stressed that since the setting aside of the funds,
Al aska's financial situation had inproved. He felt it was
unnecessary to use that fund. He stated that fund held $370
mllion, and would |ike to see the noney noved over to the
Statutory Budget Reserves. He felt that nove would
al | evi at e budgetary confusi on.

9: 59: 28 AM

Co- Chai r Hof fman stressed that the legislature had
appropriated funds, so the legislature should determ ne how
that noney was used. He wondered if there was a desire to
use the Permanent Fund for the project. M. Rehfeld
responded no, they had not.

10: 00: 20 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed section 5-b, which was a request to
appropriate $100,000 in federal receipts into the Help
Anerica Vote Act Election Fund.

10: 00: 32 AM

Ms. Rehfeld stated that section 6 had two parts. Part A was
a fund transfer of $22 mllion into the Al aska Capital
| ncone Fund. Part B was a fund transfer of $25 million from
the Al aska Housing Capital Corporation Fund for Renewable
Energy G ants.

10: 01: 17 AM

MVs. Rehfeld stated that section 7 would authorize
settlenments from insurance clains to be deposited to the
CGeneral Fund or specific state agency to mtigate |oss. She
furthered that the | anguage was standard.

10: 01: 40 AM

Ms. Rehfeld explained that section 8 was for the Nationa
Pet rol eum Reserve Al aska |Inpact G ant Program which was an
annual program She explained that the program estinmated a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/17/11 9:35 A M



receipt of $5.4 mllion for grants to comunities that are
eligible. She stated that DCCED had an annual grant
program She stressed that the anended budget i ncluded
descriptions of the specific grants that were proposed for
aut hori zation in the FY 12 budget.

10: 02: 20 AM

Senator Egan pointed out an error on line 9. M. Rehfeld
agr eed.

10: 02: 58 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed section 9, and stated that the
anended budget proposed to nove this |language to the
operating budget. She stated that part B of section 9 was
the balance of the Rail Belt Energy Fund, which was
estimated to be approximately $65.7 mllion for the Susitna
Hydro-el ectric Project.

10: 03: 41 AM

Ms. Rehfeld explained that section 10 was for $35,000 to
Life Donor Alaska Services, which was a program that
supports nmaking anatomi cal gifts.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered if that item was nornmally added
by the legislature. Ms. Rehfeld replied that it mght be
traditionally added by t he | egi sl ature, and t he
adm nistration had added the item for the legislature's
consi derati on.

10: 04: 14 AM

Ms. Rehfeld stated that section 11 referred to the |apse
provi si ons.

Ms. Rehfeld stated that section 12 stated that the
effective date of the bill would be July 1, 2012.

10: 04: 34 AM

Senat or Thonas | ooked at section 6, and queried the bal ance
of the fund. Ms. Rehfeld replied that the bal ance was $424
mllion in the permanent fund corporation.

10: 05: 08 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/17/11 9:35 A M



Co-Chair Stednan noticed that there were sone potential
additions and anendnents to the <capital budget, and
wondered what the comrittee would be required to consider.
Ms. Rehfeld replied that the admnistration had tried to
mnimze the nunber of submtted amendnents follow ng the
thirty day statutory deadline. She stated that there would
be sone small suppl enental anmendnents and stated that there
woul d be sonme projects for the Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities (DOT/PF).

Co-Chair Stednan stated that the conmttee had been made
aware of the $200 mllion for DOI/PF. He furthered that
there was potential for substantial federal noney comng to
t he state.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered if there were nore capita

anendnents. Ms. Rehfeld stated that there was an anendnent
for the Health and Social Services electronic records
upgrade, and the Departnment of the Admnistration's system
repl acenent project. She furthered that there were sone
bargaining wunit agreenents that she hoped would be
concluded at the end of the current nonth.

Co-Chair Stedman stressed that there was a concern of the
spending level, and there was an issue of savings
conponents. He stressed that there should be a robust
savings in order to feel secure.

10: 10: 27 AM

Co- Chai r Hoffman noted that the governor had rmade
subst anti al increases from the year prior, and the
| egi sl ature needed substanti al efforts and ener gy

concerni ng the budget.

10: 11: 26 AM

Co-Chair Stedman stated that there needed to be sone focus
on the enacted budget, and stated that the Governor had
made an adjustnent of approximately $301 million. Co-Chair
Hof f man furthered t hat t he | egi slature made no
nodi fications in the governor's budget in the year prior.
He stated that there should nore of a focus on savings.

Ms. Rehfeld stated that the governor was very supportive of
the desire to put noney in reserves.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/17/11 9:35 A M



Co-Chair Stednan reiterated that the legislature did not
nodi fy the governor's budget in the year prior.

Co- Chair Stedman hoped the dialogue with the admnistration
about the budget would continue to be neaningful.

10: 15: 05 AM

Senator MQ@iire spoke of the anatomcal gifts section of
t he | anguage, and thanked the Governor for including it in
the budget. She asserted that AG A reinbursenents had
popped up throughout the budget. She requested an update
from the Governor about what he felt was happening wth
AG A

10: 17: 22 AM

Co-Chair Stedman stated that he had simlar concerns
regarding AGA He stated that there was great concern over
the viability of that piece of legislation. He stated that
there was a request for a quarterly breakdown of past AG A
expenditures and rei nbursenments. He stated that there could
be a special neeting on AG A reinbursenents. He furthered
that that topic had been addressed in |eadership neetings.
He stressed that there was concern over the viability of
that legislation. He also stressed that the legislature
would |i ke to get the gas to market.

10: 21: 03 AM

Senator Thonmas commented that there was a constant issue of
how there would be a change in oil taxation. He stated that
there was sonme noney and analysis of how long the state's
savings would hold out in the future. M. Rehfeld stated
that there was sone internal work that represent spending
discipline in managing the reserves, based on reinvestnent
bef ore 2020.

Co-Chair Stedman hoped to look at the fiscal inpacts of SB
46. He expected that the commttee mght take a different
view of liquidating the state's hard earned savings. He
stressed that the nmenbers would be very protective of the
savi ngs.

SB 46 was HEARD and Held in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/17/11 9:35 A M



#
ADJ QURNVENT

10: 27: 20 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:27 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/17/11 9:35 A M



